
02-27-12                                                P & R Commission                                                                                               Page 1 of 17 

                                        Newton Parks & Recreation Commission 
Meeting Minutes 

City Hall, Room 202, 7:00pm  
February 27, 2012 

 
Attending:  Arthur Magni, Chairman, Kathleen Heitman, Vice-Chairman, Bob DeRubeis, 
Commissioner, Walter Bernheimer, Bethel Bilezikian Charkoudian, Andrew Stern, Peter Johnson, 
Richard Tucker, Peter Kastner, Jack Neville, Michael Clarke, Don Fishman (Alternate sitting in for 
Mr. Rice),  Robin McLaughlin, Secretary 
 

Absent: Fran Rice 
 
Also Attending: Carol Schein, Parks & Recreation Open Space Coordinator, Carol Stapleton, 
Recreation Manager, Tom Cahill, Aquatics Manager, Dori Zaleznik, MD, Newton Health 
Commissioner, Maria Rose, City of Newton, Environmental Engineer 
 

Meeting called to order at 7:00pm 
 
1. Meeting Minutes –January 23, 2011- accepted 8-0  

 
2. Commissioner’s Reports on Programs, Forestry and Maintenance 

 Department Scorecard (attached) 

o The Scorecard is available on the City’s website.  The Scorecard measures the 
performance of programs, maintenance of P & R lands and facilities and the 
sustainability of the community forest.   

o Mr. Stern commented the revenue for programs appears to be down.  
Commissioner DeRubeis commented it appears that way because of the way 
the money is taken in.  

 Other Business 
o The four skating rinks at Newtonville, Lower Falls Community Center, Hyde 

Community Center, and Newton Centre are being taken down this week.  
o The City launched the new website last week. 
o There was a demand for additional summer camps at the end of June and 

the end of August.  The department has added an additional camp for these 
weeks; the camp will be run out of the Emerson Community Center. 

o The Maintenance Department has started working on the ball fields thanks 
to the mild weather. 

 Field Permit Policy- Updated  
o Tom Cahill, Aquatics Director has been working with the Law Department to 

update the Field Permit Policy.  Mr. Cahill discussed the changes: 
 Groups must provide Insurance 
 Permits for PTO groups fund raising efforts must provide a letter of 

support from the school principal. 
 The permit will be available on-line as well as in hard copy. 

o Chairman Magni asked if the Commission is required to vote on the new 
policy, Commissioner DeRubeis said yes.  This new policy has made the 
process less convoluted and complicated. 

Setti D. Warren 
Mayor 

Robert J. DeRubeis 
 Commissioner 



02-27-12                                                P & R Commission                                                                                               Page 2 of 17 

o Mr. Stern asked if groups with participants under 18 must have insurance.  
Mr. Cahill responded yes.  

o Ms. Heitman asked if a group has already submitted a permit will they have 
to re-submit the new permit.  Mr. Cahill stated yes, he will notify all of those 
who have already submitted a permit and send them the updated permit.  

 
Mr. Tucker made the motion to approve the updated field permit policy as presented.  Mr. 
Bernheimer seconded the motion. The motion passed 8-0. 

 
 

3. Relay For Life – Public Hearing 

 The American Cancer Society is requesting the use of Forte Park for its annual Relay 
For Life event taking place on Saturday and Sunday, May 19, 2012, 9:00am through 
May 20, 2012 at 12:00pm (attached).  

 Notification of the Public hearing was mailed to the abutters of Forte Park on 
February 6, 2012. Chairman Magni asked if there were any abutters present who 
may have comments, issues or concerns regarding this event.  There were no 
abutters present. 

 
Mr. Tucker made the motion to approve the American Cancer Society’s request to use Forte Park 
for the Relay for Life event, as proposed.  Ms. Heitman seconded the motion.  The motion passed 
8-0. 
 
4. St. Mary of Carmen Festival – Informational Meeting 

 Chuck Proia presented the schedule for the St. Mary of Carmen Festival in July 
(attached). Mr. Proia stated there are no significant changes from last year. Last 
year the only issue took place during the procession, but the issue was addressed 
immediately. 

 Commissioner DeRubeis commented that Mr. Proia is very receptive and accessible 
to the community and to those who may have concerns about the festival.  

 Ms. Heitman commented this is a wonderful event for the community.  

 Mr. Proia commented the St. Mary of Carmen Society has become a non-profit 
organization and will be more visible within the community.  

 

Mr. Bernheimer made a motion to move the request for St. Mary of Carmen Festival to a public 
hearing in March. Ms. Heitman seconded the motion.  The motion passed 7-0. (Chairman Magni 
recused himself from the vote because he is a member of the St. Mary of Carmen Society)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



02-27-12                                                P & R Commission                                                                                               Page 3 of 17 

5. Susan G. Komen- 3Day Event- Informational 

 Jennifer Ricker, a representative of the SGK 3Day Event thanked the Commission for 
their support during the 2011 event.  

 Ms. Ricker made the following requests: 

o We would like to request the use of fields at West Newton Playground & 
McGrath Park on Friday, July 27, 2012 from 9:00am to 5:00pm as a rest stops 
for our 2,000 participants (NOTE: Only approximate 100 to 150 people on-
site at any given time). At West Newton Playground, we would create a Pit 
Stop with three 15’x15’ non-staked tents for our staff and volunteers who 
will offer food, drink and medical attention to the Walkers who elect to stop. 
All food and drink are provided by the event. Nothing will be sold on site. In 
addition, we would place several portable toilets on the premises. Trash 
boxes will be provided to collect trash and debris. Once the site is a closed, 
all trash will be disposed of in our dumpsters located off-site. 

o We would also like to set-up a Lunch Stop at McGrath Park on Friday, July 27, 
2012 from 9:00am to 5:00pm. This stop would include six 15’x15’ non-staked 
tents for our staff and volunteers who will offer food, drink and medical 
attention to the Walkers who elect to stop. The food would be stored in a 24’ 
refrigerated truck until served. All food and drink are provided by the event. 
Nothing will be sold on site. In addition, we would place several portable 
toilets on the premises. Dumpsters will also be placed on-site to collect trash 
and debris. The dumpsters will be removed following the event. 

 Ms. Ricker commented the request is the same as last year. She has been in contact 
the Mayor’s Office and Captain Mintz to work out the logistic details.  

 Chairman Magni asked Commissioner DeRubeis for feedback from the 2011 event.  
Commissioner DeRubeis stated last years’ event went well. There were no issues.   

 

Mr. Stern made a motion to move the request to a public hearing in March.  Mr. Johnson seconded 
the motion. The motion passed 8-0. 
 
6. Crystal Lake- Swim At Your Own Risk Proposal-  2nd Informational meeting 

 Deborah Fogel, of Lake Ave, appeared before the Commission on January 23, 2012 
with a Swim at Your Own Risk proposal for Crystal Lake.  At the January meeting the 
Commission requested a more detailed proposal addressing certain issues, such as 
enforcement, safety, parking, etc. 

 Ms. Fogel presented an updated proposal (available upon request). Chairman Magni 
asked Ms. Fogel about the water quality issues and studies that have been done at 
Crystal Lake. Ms. Fogel stated the concerns of the study do not have to do with the 
swimmers, but the lake itself and she must defer to the Crystal Lake Conservancy 
regarding the studies.  

 A Crystal Lake Conservancy representative stated the Conservancy is not taking a 
stand on either side of the Swim at Your Own Risk issue. Two years ago the 
Conservancy participated in a study to determine the health of Crystal Lake.  The 
results from the study showed the main issues are: 

o Run off through the storm drains 

o What people put on their lawns and comes down the drains. 



02-27-12                                                P & R Commission                                                                                               Page 4 of 17 

 Maria Rose, City’s Environmental Engineer commented she assisted the 
Conservancy with the study and agrees with the above summary but must defer to 
Dori Zaleznik, MD, Health Commissioner, regarding swimming in the lake. 

 Chairman Magni asked where the run off is located in the lake.  Ms. Rose 
commented the run offs are located in the cove (Cronin’s Cove & Levingston Cove) 
areas, not in the beach area. After a rainstorm the bacteria would be high in the 
cove areas. 

  Dr. Zaleznik stated she values the study done by the Crystal Lake Conservancy, but 
that study does not apply to the issue presented tonight.  The City does not test 
samples outside the beach area. Testing in the beach area is performed weekly 
during the swim season and the City has no intention of testing other parts of the 
lake.  Water quality levels, for swimming, as instructed by the State, will only be 
tested in the beach area. The testing for the Conservancy was done at the same lab 
as the City uses, but a different type of sample testing is done. If a sample is taken 
too close to the shore or the surface there could be more bacteria in the sample.  
The sample taken by the City is taken off-shore one foot below the surface and two 
feet above the floor.  The City has years of data and is comfortable with the water 
quality in the beach area but nowhere else in the lake.  Bacteria multiplies quickly, if 
a sample is delayed getting to the lab the data could be inaccurate. If the beach 
closes it would be prudent others should not swim in other areas of the lake. 

 Ms. Fogel stated she understands and is not arguing that point, and would 
somehow notify those swimming in the Cove area if the beach is closed.  

 Chairman Magni asked Ms. Stapleton if the aqualator at Crystal Lake is used for the 
beach area only.  Ms. Stapleton said yes, the aqualator keeps the water moving for 
about 275’.  Dr. Zaleznik commented the aqualator is not a filter it circulates the 
water to prevent an algae bloom.  

 Chairman Magni commented the proposal expects the police to enforce bad 
behavior but you also state the police are wasting their time trying to enforce the 
rules at Crystal Lake. Ms. Fogel commented they do not want a constant police  
presence.  The Police should enforce bad behavior but allow people to swim. 

 Mr. Bernheimer asked the meaning of the proposed rule that states people cannot 
leave the beach area.  Ms. Fogel stated people cannot swim out of or into the beach 
area. 

 Chairman Magni asked where people are going to change in the cove areas.  Ms. 
Fogel said the people would change at the bath house. Mr. Pawa said most people 
will change at their homes.  

 Mr. Bernheimer asked if the group has met with the Police.  Ms. Fogel said no,  but 
she has spoken with a few police officers.  

 Chairman Magni asked if it would help if the bath house hours were extended.  Ms. 
Stapleton said this is not what the group wants.  Ms. Fogel agreed. 

 Chairman Magni asked if this proposal was to accommodate the tri athlete 
swimmers, wouldn’t extended bath house hours help. Ms. Fogel said no. 

 Mr. Tucker asked if all the supporters who signed the proposal were swim at your 
own risk swimmers.  Ms. Karen Brae said no. Mr. Tucker asked what the estimated 
number of swimmers is using the coves. Mr. Pawa said a couple hundred during the 
day. 



02-27-12                                                P & R Commission                                                                                               Page 5 of 17 

 Mr. Tucker stated with the off-leash areas the users of the off-leash areas are self-
policing, does your group have the same support. Ms. Fogel said she hopes they 
would have the support.  

 Mr. Tucker asked if the group cares if the people in the water can swim or not. In 
the beach area people are constantly observed. Mr. Pawa said people look out for 
each other. 

 Mr. Stern asked if there are any specific rules that deal with illegal  swimming, are 
there trespassing fines.  Commissioner DeRubeis stated the magistrate will not 
enforce the citation without an ordinance. 

 Mr. Bernheimer stated if we try this experiment, permit sales will go down and 
people will use the lake when the bath house is closed and this will have a negative 
effect on the City. 

 Mr. Stern asked where the boat dock is located.  Commissioner DeRubeis stated the 
boat dock is at Cronin’s Cove. Mr. Stern asked who uses the dock.  Ms. Fogel said 
swimmers sit on it.  

 Mr. Magni asked if there is a danger of boats and swimmers. Mr. Clarke responded 
the boats going into the water do not have motors. 

 Mr. Fishman stated the numbers will increase outside the beach area and this will 
increase the danger to others.  An example is his daughter, who wishes the bath 
house was open later, may decide to swim after the bath house is closed if the swim 
at your own risk policy is put into place.  

 Commissioner DeRubeis asked who will enforce the rules.  Mr. Pawa said the 
existing rule is a silly rule.  Mr. Bernheimer stated an ordinance is needed before a 
new policy is put into place. Mr. Kastner stated fees and penalties should be 
implemented.  

 Mr. Stern commented he is a lawyer and read the proposal. And his personal 
opinion after reading the two cases cited in the proposal regarding the Recreational 
Use Statute, is as follows: 

o People will be endangering themselves 
o If we approve this proposal we will be setting a precedent and next we will 

have a proposal for skating at your own risk, etc. 
o Law suits always allege the wanton, willful misconduct and reckless behavior 

of Cities and Towns. Even if the City is protected by the Recreational use 
Statute, all the facts must be figured out which incurs a lot of time and a high 
financial cost. 

 Mr. Stern agrees the Alderman must create an ordinance to protect with credible 
enforcement. 

 Ms. Fogel requested a public hearing. Mr. Bernheimer stated in his opinion an 
ordinance is required before the proposal moves on to the public hearing. Mr. 
Clarke agreed. 

 Mr. Stern said it is the responsibility of the Commission to state a position on an 
area we control. 

Mr. Fishman made the motion to establish a conference committee consisting of the 
members from the following groups; P & R Commission, P & R Department, An Alderman 
representative including an Alderman from Ward 6, Police Department and Law 
Department, to develop a policy for Crystal Lake. Motion passed 6-1(Stern)-1(Charkoudian). 
 

 



02-27-12                                                P & R Commission                                                                                               Page 6 of 17 

7. Lyons Field Concession Stand – Newton West Little League (NWLL) -Informational 

 Melissa Summer stated she was the concession manager for NWLL last year. The 
concession stand was certified last season and she has been certified to run the 
concession stand but the stand will not be approved by the Health Department as 
is.  Currently on site are storage containers and a horse trailer. Changes need to be 
made. NWLL is proposing (plans attached) a permanent structure, which includes 
the concession stand, storage and a unisex bathroom that is accessible.  

 Mr. Bernheimer and Mr. Stern commented the issue is do we want a permanent 
structure for private use on public land.  Chairman Magni asked what an alternative 
would be. Ms. Heitman commented she has been to youth league events with her 
grandchildren and permanent concession stands seem to be the trend.  

 Mr. Stern asked how many months the stand would be in operation.  Ms. Summer 
answered eight month of the year.  

 Mr. Johnson commented the structure would be a good size, without the overhang 
the building would be approximately as large as the room they were in (Room 202, 
City Hall).  

 Ms. Schein stated a permanent structure cannot be built in a park without an 
accessible route.  There has to be a less than 5% grade.  

 Chairman Magni stated the proposal will require an ADA accessibility plan.  

 Commissioner DeRubeis commented he has met with the NWLL representatives and 
NWLL is aware they must go before the Site Plan & Review committee. 
Commissioner DeRubeis recommended NWLL meet with the Planning Department 
and John Lojek of the Inspectional Services Department.  

 Mr. Clarke suggested the plan be revised to justify the structure, have a 
maintenance plan and a finance plan to afford the structure.  

 Mr. Bernheimer would like to see a rendering of the plan with a view from 
Commonwealth Ave.  

 Mr. Tucker asked what NWLL is doing this season waiting for a decision.  Ms. 
Summer responded they have contacted a private vendor. 

 Mr. Fishman stated there is a conflict of a privately run structure on public land; 
what is the agreement regarding land, etc. 

 Mr. Stern stated the Commission must think of the precedent that is being set if this 
is approved. 

 Mr. Tucker asked if the City benefits financially in any way.  Ms. Summer said no.  

 Chairman Magni requested NWLL come back to the March 19 th Commission meeting 
with a revised plan. 

 
8. New Business 

 Alms House – Nahanton Park 
o Michael Clarke made a presentation to the Commission regarding the Alms 

House at Nahanton Park (The complete presentation is available upon 
request).  Currently the building is used by the Public Buildings Department 
as a carpenters shop.  Mr. Clarke would like the Commission’s approval to go 
to the Historical Commission to have the Alms House added to the 
Massachusetts Historical Register. 

 
Mr. Bernheimer made the motion to approve Mr. Clarke’s request.  Mr. Tucker seconded the 
motion.  Motion passed 8-0 



02-27-12                                                P & R Commission                                                                                               Page 7 of 17 

 
 

 
 
Meeting Adjourned at 9:45 pm 
Respectfully submitted,  
Robin McLaughlin, Secretary 



02-27-12                                                P & R Commission                                                                                               Page 8 of 17 

Scorecard 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



02-27-12                                                P & R Commission                                                                                               Page 9 of 17 

 



02-27-12                                                P & R Commission                                                                                               Page 10 of 17 

 



02-27-12                                                P & R Commission                                                                                               Page 11 of 17 

 



02-27-12                                                P & R Commission                                                                                               Page 12 of 17 

 

 

 

 

NWLL- Concession Stand 



02-27-12                                                P & R Commission                                                                                               Page 13 of 17 

 



02-27-12                                                P & R Commission                                                                                               Page 14 of 17 

 



02-27-12                                                P & R Commission                                                                                               Page 15 of 17 

Alms House 

 

 



02-27-12                                                P & R Commission                                                                                               Page 16 of 17 

 



02-27-12                                                P & R Commission                                                                                               Page 17 of 17 

 

Complete Form B and Presentation are available upon request at parks@newtonma.gov. 


